


 

Page 2 of 4 
Petition of the Guam Power for Approval of Additional Projected Costs of Urea Supply Contract 
GPA Docket No. 25-08 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

 

term ends on May 1, 2025; with the first extension the term ends on May 1, 2026; and with the 

second extension the term ends on May 1, 2027. 

In March 2024, GPA entered into a contract with Aggreko to install and operate a 

temporary power plant to provide an additional 20MW capacity to support the grid until the Ukudu 

power plant comes online in September 2025. Under GPA’s contract with Aggreko, GPA agreed 

to supply the urea that Aggreko needs for emission controls. Thus, GPA needs substantially greater 

quantities of urea than it had originally anticipated when it entered into the contract with PPTC. 

As a result, GPA now needs to spend more on urea. 

Attachment 1 to CCU Resolution No. FY2025-101, see Ex. A (CCU Resolution No. 

FY2025-10 (Jan. 28, 2025)), shows in the first table the actual and projected costs of urea over 

time, and in the second table the actual and projected quantities of urea used. The first table shows 

that by the end of FY2024, GPA had spent $539,977 on urea during the contract with PPTC and 

is projected to spend $2,885,001 by the end of FY2025 and $4,842,501 by the end of FY2026. The 

table contains no projections beyond July 2026, when GPA’s contract with Aggreko ends; 

however, the contract remains available until then to supply GPA’s urea needs. 

An excerpt (below) from the table shows that by the end of February 2025, GPA is 

projected to spend approximately $1,514,752 on urea. 

Urea Purchases – Actual and Projected Costs 
(from Attachment 1, First Table) 
Month Cost ($) Type 

Running total to end of FY2024 539,977 actual 
Oct 2024 194,576 actual 
Nov 2024 193,813 actual 
Dec 2024 194,886 actual 
Jan 2025 195,750 projected 
Feb 2025 195,750 projected 

Running total to end of Feb 2025 1,514,752 projected 

 
1 Attached in support of this petition as Exhibit A and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 
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II. Request for Approval 

The PUC contract review protocol requires PUC authorization for all contracts in excess 

of $1.5 million. GPA’s contract with PPTC for urea will imminently reach that threshold. In 

addition, funding for urea falls under the LEAC clause. Thus, the PUC’s involvement is required. 

The Consolidated Commission on Utilities recently increased the General Manager’s 

obligating authority to $1.5 million.2 See Ex. B (CCU Resolution No. FY2025-07 (Jan. 28, 2025)). 

GPA’s spending on urea will exceed that amount later this month, because projected spending on 

urea to the end of February 2025 is estimated to be $1,514,752. By the end of FY2025, projected 

spending on urea is estimated to reach $2,885,001. By the end of FY2026, projected spending on 

urea is estimated to reach $4,842,501. Because the General Manager can spend only up to 

$1.5 million without the PUC’s approval, GPA requires the PUC to approve an additional 

$3,342,501 in the cost of the contract ($4,842,501 – $1,500,000). 

Attachment III to Exhibit A shows that GPA has negotiated a favorable price reduction for 

the urea; in return, GPA must exercise its options to extend the contract. To meet the needs of the 

diesel plants, GPA will need to extend the contract in any event. The price reduction in exchange 

for a needed extension shows that the contract is reasonable. 

The Yigo diesels and the Aggreko units cannot operate in compliance with environmental 

law without urea. It is a necessary component of their operations, as well as a prudent means to 

ensure environmental compliance. 

/ / / 

 

2 Even if the CCU had not increased the General Manager’s obligating authority, the CCU in its resolution for the 
urea contract authorizes increasing the urea contract to a total of $1.5 million. See Ex. A at 2, ll 1-3. 
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III. Conclusion

Based on the foregoing, GPA requests that the PUC approve GPA’s request to increase the 

$1.5 million urea supply contract with PPTC by $3,342,501 to a total of up to $4,842,501. The 

request is reasonable, prudent, and necessary. 

Respectfully submitted this 12th day of February, 2025. 

Attorney for Guam Power Authority 

By:  ________________________________ 
Marianne Woloschuk 
GPA Legal Counsel 
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